
  
 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
 

 
Date: February 3, 2026 
Time: 10:30 AM – 12:00 PM 
 
 Page 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. AGENDA REVIEW 
 
3. CHAIRPERSON’S COMMENTS 

 
4. COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
5. CONSENT / ACTION ITEMS 

All matters listed on the Consent Agenda have been distributed to the Board, are considered routine and will 
be enacted by one motion with no separate discussion. If separate discussion is desired, that item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the regular agenda by a Board member. 
 
a. Warrants for December 2025  1  
b. Minutes of January 6, 2026 2 
c. Minutes of January 20, 2026 8 
d. Resolution No. 26-09, Approve the 2026 Kitsap Transit Safety Plan 17 

To view the proposed 2026 Kitsap Transit Safety Plan, copy and paste or select the following hyperlink: 
https://www.kitsaptransit.com/uploads/pdf/reso/2024/5.dresolutionno.26-09kitsaptransitaspdraftsafetycommitteeredlineexhibita.pdf 

e. Resolution No. 26-10, Approve Marine Services 2026 Insurance Renewal 19 
 
6. FULL DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS   

a. Resolution No. 26-11, Approve KT 25-988 Change Order 4 MV Solano Repairs 22  
b. Resolution No. 26-12, Award KT 25-014 Reliance Engine Swings and Repairs 25  
c. Resolution No. 26-13, Award Contract Federal Legislative Liaison 28  

      
7. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ITEMS 

 
8. STAFF RECOGNITION/PROGRESS REPORTS 

a. Recognize Drivers of the Month for December 2025 (10:45 AM)  
b. Recognize Drivers of the Year for 2025  
c. February 2026 Report from KT Lobbyist 33  
d. Draft Financial Reports through December 2025 36  
e. Capital Work in Progress December 2025 39  
f. Fuel Costs Report through the end of January 2026  41  

https://www.kitsaptransit.com/uploads/pdf/reso/2024/5.dresolutionno.26-09kitsaptransitaspdraftsafetycommitteeredlineexhibita.pdf


Transit Board Meeting Agenda 
February 3, 2026 
 

 ii 

 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
Please state your name for the record.  You will have 3 minutes to address the Board. 

  
10. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER:  
Transit Board members’ comments. 

 
11. ADJOURN: 

 
Agendas and Board Packets are available online at www.kitsaptransit.com and available in large-print format 
upon request.  If you will need accessibility accommodations for this public meeting, please contact the 
Clerk of the Board at (360) 478-6230 or via email at JacquelynB@kitsaptransit.com by noon on the 
Wednesday before the meeting. 

http://www.kitsaptransit.com/
mailto:JacquelynB@kitsaptransit.com


MEMORANDUM 
TO:   The Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners 
DATE: February 3rd, 2026 
SUBJECT: Ratification of Cash and Registered Warrants 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify to the best of my knowledge, under penalty of perjury that the materials have been 
furnished, the services rendered, or the labor performed as described herein and that the claim is a just, due and unpaid 
obligation against Kitsap Transit, and that I am authorized to authenticate and certify to say claim. 

____________________________________ 
Paul Shinners, Finance Director 

Warrants audited and certified by the auditing officer as required by RCW 42.24.080, and those expense reimbursement 
claims certified as required by RCW 42.24.090, have been recorded on a listing that has been made available to the 
Board of Commissioners. 

As of February 3rd, 2026, the Board, by a (unanimous/majority) vote, does approve the following warrants and payments 
for December 1st, 2025, through December 31st, 2025:   

• Warrant numbers transit fund 175301 to 175602 of $3,153,963
• Warrant numbers ferry fund 609865 to 609940 of $2,648,981
• Payroll Account disbursements of $3,721,123
• ACH clearing account payments of $29,599
• Travel Account Disbursements of $1,128
• Purchasing Card Disbursements of $45,321

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Kitsap Transit at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 3rd day of 
February 2026.  

____________________________________ 
Katherine T. Walters, Chair  

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Jackie Bidon, Clerk of Board 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 1 of 41



KITSAP TRANSIT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
MINUTES OF January 06, 2026 

Board of Commissioners Present:  
Driskell, Robert, Teamsters Local No. 589, non-voting member    
Mockler, Anna, Councilmember, City of Bremerton  
Moriwaki, Clarence, Councilmember, City of Bainbridge Island, Vice Chair 
Putaansuu, Robert, Mayor, City of Port Orchard, Virtual  
Rolfes, Christine, Kitsap County Commissioner 
Root, Oran, Kitsap County Commissioner 
Rosapepe, Jay, Councilmember, City of Port Orchard 
Stern, Ed Mayor, City of Poulsbo   
Walters, Katie, Kitsap County Commissioner, Chair 
Wheeler, Greg, Mayor, City of Bremerton, Arrived 11:07 AM 

Staff Present: 
Sanjay Bhatt, Marketing & Public Information Director; Jackie Bidon, Clerk of the Board, Public 
Records Officer; Michael Bozarth, Operations Director; John Clauson, Executive Director; Dennis 
Griffey, Vehicle and Facilities Maintenance Director; Ellen Gustafson, Acting Marine Services 
Director; Steffani Lillie, Service and Capital Development Director; Charlotte Sampson, Executive 
Assistant/Deputy Clerk of the Board; Paul Shinners, Finance Director 

Also Present:   
David Weibel, Legal Counsel  
Dylan Doty, Legislative Lobbyist 

Select the video Zoom address below or copy and paste into your browser address field to hear 
the Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners discussion of a specific topic, or the complete meeting. 
Note the video time stamp beside the topic. 
https://kitsaptransit.zoom.us/rec/share/slz0op5k4TIS6-
RW0EZfk4w6Y5WY37oI1fOTNlEiFo6zGNELqrldWN4Jzt3fJ9PK.RYQv6d6zH7-xmeT6 
Passcode: &3L5m2W&  

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chairperson Walters called the meeting of the Kitsap Transit Board of
Commissioners to order at 10:30 AM. Chairperson Walters called for Board member support staff
introductions.

2. AGENDA REVIEW

Upon review by the Board, the agenda remained unchanged. 

Councilmember Moriwaki moved and Commissioner Rolfes seconded the motion to 
approve the agenda as presented.  

Board Meeting Packet  Page 2 of 41

https://kitsaptransit.zoom.us/rec/share/slz0op5k4TIS6-RW0EZfk4w6Y5WY37oI1fOTNlEiFo6zGNELqrldWN4Jzt3fJ9PK.RYQv6d6zH7-xmeT6
https://kitsaptransit.zoom.us/rec/share/slz0op5k4TIS6-RW0EZfk4w6Y5WY37oI1fOTNlEiFo6zGNELqrldWN4Jzt3fJ9PK.RYQv6d6zH7-xmeT6


Discussion:   
None 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
3. CHAIRPERSON’S COMMENTS 
 
Commissioner Walters stated that she was honored to chair the committee and underscored the 
importance of keeping ridership at the forefront of the Board’s work. 
 
4. COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
0:02:44, Executive Director Clauson noted that the November and December Community Advisory 
Committee meetings were consolidated in observance of the holiday season. He then provided 
an update on the committee’s recent discussions, including member renewals, a review of board 
composition, and the timeliness of service disruption notifications. 

 
5. CONSENT / ACTION ITEM:  

 
a. Warrants for November 2025 

• Warrant numbers transit fund 175001 to 175300 of $2,604,972 
• Warrant numbers ferry fund 609764 to 609864 of $2,583,832 
• Payroll Account disbursements of $3,550,762 
• ACH clearing account payments of $40,919 
• Travel Account Disbursements of $562 
• Purchasing Card Disbursements of $30,477 

 
b. Minutes of December 2, 2025 
c. Resolution No. 26-01, 1st Quarter 2026 Procurements 
d. Resolution No. 26-02, Approve 2026 Liability Insurance WSTIP 
e. Resolution No. 26-03, Approve Kitsap Transit 2026 Goals  
f. Resolution No. 26-04, Adopting 2026 Legislative Priorities  

 
Discussion:   
 
0:04:09, Councilmember Mockler recommended removing agenda item 5e for additional 
discussion, suggesting it be deferred to a study session to allow for a comprehensive review of 
the 2026 goals. She further proposed that agenda item 5f be moved to General Business. 
 
0:6:02, The Clerk of the Board requested clarification regarding the reassignment of item 5f. 
Councilmember Mockler confirmed that agenda item 5f should be moved to section 6, Full 
Discussion / Action Items. 
 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 3 of 41



0:6:16, Commissioner Walters asked whether Councilmember Mockler would like to move 
approval of the consent agenda, amended to relocate Item 5e, Approval of the Kitsap Transit 
Goals, to a study session and to move Item 5f to section 6b for full discussion. Mayor Stern 
seconded the motion. 
 
0:06:38, Mayor Putaansuu raised a point of order, asking whether it would be more appropriate 
to make a motion to remove the items in question rather than to approve the consent agenda 
without them. He clarified that, if the intent is to withdraw an item from the Consent Agenda, the 
proper procedure is to make a motion to remove it and then seek a second. 
 
0:07:21, Board discussion addressing the proper procedure for moving and removing items from 
the Consent Agenda. 
 
0:09:00, Councilmember Mockler withdrew her motion. Mayor Stern withdrew the second.  
 
Clerk’s Notation: Upon review of the meeting video, it was determined that Councilmember 
Mockler did not make a motion at or near the 0:06:16 timestamp. Commissioner Walters clarified 
Councilmember Mockler’s recommendation, and Mayor Stern issued a second in error. The 
motion withdrawn at the 0:09:00 timestamp is therefore null. 
 
Councilmember Mockler moved and Mayor Stern seconded the motion to bring both 
agenda items 5e and 5f into agenda item 6. Full Discussion/Action Items. 
 
Commissioner Rolfes moved and Councilmember Mockler seconded the motion to approve 
Consent Action Items A through D. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
6. FULL DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

a. Resolution No. 26-05, Approve Purchase of Wheelchair Lift Vans 
 
0:10:17, Executive Director Clauson explained that the resolution seeks authorization to purchase 
eight wheelchair-lift minivans and three full-size wheelchair-lift vans for use in the VanLink 
program, with potential deployment in the ACCESS program as well. 
 
Councilmember Rosapepe moved and Councilmember Moriwaki seconded the motion to 
adopt Resolution No. 26-05, authorizing staff to purchase up to eight (8) wheelchair-lift 
equipped mini-vans and up to three (3) wheelchair-lift equipped full-size vans at the 
estimated cost of nine hundred twenty-five thousand four hundred dollars ($925,400). 
 
Discussion:  
 
0:11:30, Board discussion addressed the anticipated delivery timeline for the vans and the 
operational considerations for deploying wheelchair-accessible vans versus ACCESS vehicles. 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 4 of 41



 
Motion passed with seven (7) yays and one (1) opposed (Councilmember Mockler).  
 

b. Resolution No. 26-03, Approve Kitsap Transit 2026 Goals  
 
0:21:58, Executive Director Clauson explained that the resolution represents a continuation of 
unfinished 2025 goals, emphasizing the agency’s focus on ridership and community service. He 
noted that he welcomes further Board-level discussion and had sought Board input on goal 
development throughout the year. In the absence of such input, staff proceeded with drafting the 
2026 Goals. 
 
Councilmember Mockler moved and Commissioner Rolfes seconded the motion to defer 
Resolution No. 26-03, to the next study session. 
Discussion:   
 
0:23:23, Councilmember Rosapepe stated that he was not opposed to deferring the item. He 
emphasized the need for the Board to be more responsive when the Executive Director requests 
input and observed that the goals presented are neither new nor unique within the transit 
industry. 
 
Motion passed with seven (7) yays and one (1) opposed (Councilmember Rosapepe).  
 

c. Resolution No. 26-04, Adopting 2026 Legislative Priorities  
 
Councilmember Rosapepe moved and Councilmember Mockler seconded the motion to 
adopt Resolution No. 26-04, adopting the 2026 Legislative Priorities for Kitsap Transit. 
 
0:26:34, Executive Director Clauson noted that one item had been added since the list was 
presented to the Board in December. He explained that the new provision calls for supporting and 
collaborating with the legislature to secure funding for Washington State Ferries (WSF) to remove 
Pier 48. He further clarified that although WSF had planned the pier’s removal for environmental 
cleanup and demolition, the agency has not yet obtained the necessary legislative funding, which 
may affect the scope of the project. 
 
Discussion:   
 
Board discussion addressed the potential inclusion of a funding request for bus shelters, the 
challenges posed by the current budget year, and the importance of prioritizing strategic 
legislative initiatives. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
0:33:17, Mayor Putaansuu sought clarification, confirming that the reference to supporting the 
Bremerton service pertains to Kitsap Transit’s fast ferry service. 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 5 of 41



 
0:33:28, Executive Director Clauson clarified that the intent is not only to support the fast ferry and 
its continued operation, but also to provide general support for Washington State Ferries’ service 
between Bremerton and Seattle. 
 
7. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ITEMS 
 
0:33:54, Executive Director Clauson announced the appointment of Nicholas Zylstra as the new 
Marine Services Director. He noted that Mr. Zylstra brings extensive experience in the marine 
industry and will begin his role at Kitsap Transit on January 12, 2026. 
 
Executive Director Clauson shared upcoming events with the Board.  

• The American Public Transit Association’s meeting and expo will be taking place in October 
2026. He encouraged Board members to attend if their schedule allows.  

• The Board Composition Review will take place this year. Kitsap Transit will request that 
each jurisdiction represented on the Transit Board designate a member to participate in 
the review and make recommendations regarding Board composition. Formal letters will 
be distributed in the coming months. 

 
8. STAFF RECOGNITION / PROGRESS REPORTS 

a. Recognizing Drivers of the Month for November 2025 (10:45am) 
 
0:14:40, Thomas Gilbert, Routed Manager, recognized the Routed Driver of the Month for 
November 2025, Justin Vandermost.  
 
0:17:12, Jeff Vinecourt, ACCESS Manager, recognized the ACCESS Driver of the Month for 
November 2025, Dawson Krohn.  
 
0:19:34, Cyndi Griffey, Worker/Driver Manager recognized the Worker/Driver of the Month for 
November 2025, Lindsay Skelly. 
 

b. January 2026 Report from KT Lobbyist 
 
0:39:47, Kitsap Transit Lobbyist Dylan Doty provided an update on the legislative session, 
highlighting potential challenges related to transportation funding and the possible need to 
reallocate or redefine certain project funds. 
 
Board discussion covered the Connecting Washington Plan, a potential sales tax increase, the 
overall transportation budget, the removal of Pier 48, the Climate Commitment Act, and the 
Washington Highway Users Federation and it’s meeting attendance link. 
  

c. Draft Financial Reports through November 2025  
d. Capital Work in Progress November 2025   
e. Fuel Costs Report through the end of December 2025  

Board Meeting Packet  Page 6 of 41



 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 
None at this time. 
 
10. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER:  
 
0:51:12, Councilmember Mockler encouraged Board members to attend a Project Connect event 
on January 29 to better understand the needs of homeless individuals in the community. 
 
11. ADJOURN: At 11:24 AM, Chairperson Walters adjourned the regular meeting.   
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Kitsap Transit at a regular meeting thereof, held on 
the 3rd day of February, 2026.  
 
 
 
 
        
Attest: Katherine T. Walters, Chairperson 
 
 
  
Jackie Bidon, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 7 of 41



KITSAP TRANSIT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
MINUTES OF January 20, 2026 
 
Board of Commissioners Present:  
Driskell, Robert, Teamsters Local No. 589, non-voting member, Absent    
Mockler, Anna, Councilmember, City of Bremerton  
Moriwaki, Clarence, Mayor, City of Bainbridge Island, Vice Chair  
Putaansuu, Robert, Mayor, City of Port Orchard, Arrived 8:34 AM 
Rolfes, Christine, Kitsap County Commissioner 
Root, Oran, Kitsap County Commissioner 
Rosapepe, Jay, Councilmember, City of Port Orchard  
Stern, Ed, Mayor, City of Poulsbo  
Walters, Katie, Kitsap County Commissioner, Chair 
Wheeler, Greg, Mayor, City of Bremerton 
 
Staff Present:  
Sanjay Bhatt, Marketing & Public Information Director; Jackie Bidon, Clerk of the Board, Public 
Records Officer; Michael Bozarth, Operations Director; John Clauson, Executive Director; Dennis 
Griffey, Vehicle and Facilities Maintenance Director; Steffani Lillie, Service and Capital 
Development Director; Charlotte Sampson, Executive Assistant/Deputy Clerk of the Board; Paul 
Shinners, Finance Director; Nick Zylstra, Marine Services Director 
 
Also Present:  David Weibel, Legal Counsel  
 
Select the video Zoom address below or copy and paste into your browser address field to hear 
the Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners discussion of a specific topic, or the complete meeting. 
Note the video time stamp beside the topic. 
https://kitsaptransit.zoom.us/rec/share/c_rm1eVjXgHOQkaaZ0ayWcTrvym4iXxsVophcc-
dNl5gcezFMCMaIWpy5D0UEPlk.n6jtfSN3IiZ99v_b  
Passcode: DB*67SXd  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Commissioner Walters called the meeting of the Kitsap Transit Board of 
Commissioners to order at 8:30 AM. 
 
2. AGENDA REVIEW 
 
Upon review by the Board, the agenda remained unchanged. 
 
3. CHAIRPERSON’S COMMENTS 
 
0:00:49, Commissioner Walters noted that several Board members attended an impressive Martin 
Luther King Day ceremony held at the fairgrounds. 
 
4. FULL DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

a. Resolution No. 26-06, Approve ILA with Port of Bremerton Construction of Port Orchard 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 8 of 41

https://kitsaptransit.zoom.us/rec/share/c_rm1eVjXgHOQkaaZ0ayWcTrvym4iXxsVophcc-dNl5gcezFMCMaIWpy5D0UEPlk.n6jtfSN3IiZ99v_b
https://kitsaptransit.zoom.us/rec/share/c_rm1eVjXgHOQkaaZ0ayWcTrvym4iXxsVophcc-dNl5gcezFMCMaIWpy5D0UEPlk.n6jtfSN3IiZ99v_b


Marina Breakwater 
 
0:01:46, Executive Director Clauson explained that the resolution would authorize Kitsap Transit 
to enter into an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with the Port of Bremerton for the Port Orchard Marina 
Breakwater replacement project, including provisions for vessel mooring and potential electric 
ferry charging. The new breakwater design is intended to mitigate wake impacts and provide 
moorage for two Kitsap Transit vessels. Clauson further noted that if the Port of Bremerton does 
not proceed with the project, it is obligatory to reimburse Kitsap Transit for any funds previously 
provided.  

Councilmember Rosapepe moved and Commissioner Root seconded the motion to adopt 
Resolution No. 26-06, authorizing staff to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with the Port 
of Bremerton to provide funding in the amount of nine hundred seventy-three thousand 
four hundred forty-one dollars ($973,441) for the construction of the Port Orchard Marina 
Breakwater Replacement Project and moorage. 
 
Discussion: 
 
0:05:00, Councilmember Rosapepe asked about the source of the funding and requested 
clarification on whether any refunded funds could result in the loss of grant funding. 
 
0:05:15, Executive Director Clauson stated that the funding would come from local dollars.  
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
0:06:17, Commissioner Rolfes noted that the signature page in Exhibit A contains a scrivener’s 
error. The error, located on page 9 of the Board Packet, reflects “TRASIT” and will be corrected to 
“TRANSIT” prior to signing. 
 

b. Resolution No. 26-07, Approve CO 3 KT 25-986 Bremerton Dock Sewer and  
Sanitary Repiping 

 
0:07:28, Executive Director Clauson explained that the project involves replacing the piping that 
services the vessels by pumping wastewater off the boats and supplying fresh water onboard. The 
contractor determined that the existing connection pipe had deteriorated to the extent that 
replacement was necessary to ensure a secure and reliable connection. 
 
Discussion: 
 
0:08:45, Councilmember Mockler asked where the sewage is directed after it is pumped off the 
vessels. 
 
0:08:57, Executive Director Clauson stated that the sewage is directed into the city system. 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 9 of 41



 
0:09:06, Councilmember Mockler asked whether the replacement work is occurring within the 
city’s section of the pipe. 
 
0:09:12, Executive Director Clauson stated that he did not believe the replacement work was within 
the city’s section of the pipe and did not anticipate any impact on the city. He explained that the 
corrosion is located at the connection point between the two systems and will be addressed as 
part of the upgrade. 
 
0:09:27, Councilmember Mockler asked if Executive Director Clauson’s assessment proved 
incorrect and there were an impact on the city, who she should contact regarding the matter. 
 
0:09:33, Executive Director Clauson confirmed that she should contact him directly.  
 
0:09:38, Commissioner Root asked whether the third change order was due to increased repair 
overages. 
 
0:09:55, Executive Director Clauson explained that the contractor identified additional work 
outside the scope of the original project. Some plumbing was located underwater, resulting in 
unforeseen repairs addressed in Change Orders 1 and 2. The cumulative total of all three change 
orders exceeds the Executive Director’s 10% authority, necessitating Board approval. He noted 
that the repairs included in Change Order 3 differ from those in the prior change orders. 
 
0:10:31, Mayor Moriwaki asked whether Kitsap Transit would be adding funds to the Capital 
Budget to cover the additional project costs. 
 
0:10:37, Executive Director Clauson stated that the cost is included in the Capital Budget and noted 
that project estimates are developed to anticipate any additional costs that may arise. 
   
Commissioner Root moved and Mayor Putaansuu seconded the motion to adopt Resolution 
No. 26-07, authorizing staff to approve contract KT 25-986, Change Order 3, in the amount 
of twenty-three thousand nine hundred seventy-nine dollars ($23,979) for additional 
materials required. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 

c. Resolution No. 26-08, Approve Enetai Overhaul Parts Purchase 
 
0:11:56, Executive Director Clauson reported that Kitsap Transit solicited bids for parts needed to 
complete the overhaul of the Enetai’s engines and requested approval to award the contract to 
Pacific Power Group. He noted that Pacific Power Group is the sole vendor capable of supplying 
the required MTU engine parts, making this a sole source contract. 
 
Discussion: 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 10 of 41



 
0:12:46, Commissioner Rolfes asked which route the Enetai operates on. 
 
0:12:50, Executive Director Clauson stated that the Enetai operates on both the Southworth and 
Kingston routes. 
 
0:13:01, Commissioner Walters asked whether Marine Services would be adding the parts to its 
inventory or if this would be a one-time purchase. 
 
0:13:09, Executive Director Clauson stated that the parts being purchased are those necessary to 
complete the engine rebuild. 
 
0:13:17, Mayor Putaansuu asked whether staff would be performing the engine rebuild. 
 
0:13:18, Executive Director Clauson responded that staff would not be performing the rebuild; 
Pacific Power Group will complete the work. 
 
0:13:32, Councilmember Mockler asked whether there might be a way to avoid a sole source 
procurement in the future. 
 
0:13:47, Executive Director Clauson explained that, because Pacific Power Group is the sole 
distributor for the OEM parts, avoiding a sole source procurement is unlikely. He noted that using 
aftermarket parts could provide alternatives, but doing so may affect the engine warranty. 
 
0:15:03, Mayor Stern noted that engine rebuilds are expected to occur on a regular schedule and 
asked what the current reserve for replacement is, as well as whether the agency is reserving funds 
aggressively enough to meet anticipated future costs. 
 
0:15:28, Executive Director Clauson stated that staff plans to bring forward a Board-level 
discussion regarding a vessel replacement program. He noted that there is currently no reserve 
sufficient to fund vessel replacement and that the present project pertains to ongoing 
maintenance. He acknowledged that the vessels operate intensively and require periodic engine 
rebuilding based on engine hours and emphasized that Kitsap Transit aims to be proactive rather 
than reactive in addressing engine needs. 
 
0:16:23, Mayor Moriwaki asked how long the vessel would be out of service. 
 
0:16:27, Executive Director Clauson stated that the vessel is expected to be out of service for 
approximately three months. 
  
Mayor Moriwaki moved and Mayor Stern seconded the motion to adopt Resolution No. 26-
08, approving staff to purchase parts from Pacific Power Group for the M/V Enetai Half-
Life Engine Overhaul in the amount of five hundred seventy-seven thousand five hundred 
ninety-four dollars ($577,594). 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 11 of 41



 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 

d. Discussion – 2026 Goals 
 
0:18:01, Executive Director Clauson noted that the Board had requested additional discussion 
regarding the Kitsap Transit 2026 Goals included in the Board packet. He explained that the goals 
presented were developed after soliciting input from both the Board and Kitsap Transit Directors. 
 
0:18:43, Commissioner Walters read the proposed 2026 Goals aloud. 
 
0:19:41, Board discussion followed. 
 
Councilmember Mockler commented that the proposed 2026 Goals function more as a work plan 
than as true goals. She suggested that the Board consider what outcomes they want to achieve in 
2026 and what they hope to accomplish for current riders and potential future ridership. 
 
Mayor Moriwaki commented that the goals presented are worthwhile but align more closely with 
a vision statement than with concrete, measurable goals. 
 
Mayor Stern stated that he would like to see a more clearly defined program to address bus 
shelters, noting that if the agency aims to increase ridership by 10%, improving shelter from the 
weather would be a logical goal. He added that another potential goal, perhaps for 2027, would 
be to contract a consultant to evaluate the viability of offering free routed bus service. 
 
Commissioner Walters requested clarification on whether the intent was to revise the 2026 Goals 
or to approve them at the staff level, and what the overall objective of the discussion was. 
 
Executive Director Clauson stated that it is the Board’s prerogative to modify any of the listed 
goals. He asked the Board to keep in mind that goals with associated costs are likely not included 
in the 2026 budget. If a revised goal requires additional funding, Kitsap Transit will return to the 
Board for further direction. 
 
Commissioner Rolfes stated that the comments offered were appropriate to the discussion. She 
noted prior conversations about holding a retreat-style meeting to establish goals and suggested 
that such a session occur before development of the 2027 budget. She explained that a retreat 
would allow the Board to consolidate goals identified over recent years and develop a more 
complete goals document. Commissioner Rolfes agreed with Councilmember Mockler that 
increasing ridership by 10% is an important objective but emphasized the need to identify the 
steps required to achieve it. She requested a four-hour retreat-style meeting to allow for deeper 
discussion and development of a strategic plan. 
 
Commissioner Walters noted that prior discussions included reaffirming the agency’s mission and 
taking a closer look at it. She suggested approving the 2026 Goals as recommended by staff and 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 12 of 41



then, for 2027, holding a retreat to discuss and develop the next set of goals moving forward.  
 
Commissioner Root noted that the Board may amend the 2026 Goals throughout the year if 
needed. He added that establishing a baseline is important and expressed support for holding a 
retreat to further develop the goals. 
 
Commissioner Walters noted that the Board may be missing the work plan that should accompany 
each goal, including the steps needed to achieve them. 
 
Councilmember Rosapepe agreed to move forward with the presented goals, noting that they are 
measurable. He also emphasized the importance of viewing them from a strategic standpoint, 
with both high-level direction and corresponding measurable objectives. 
 

• Resolution No. 26-03, Adoption of 2026 Goals 
 
Councilmember Rosapepe moved and Commissioner Root seconded the motion to adopt 
Resolution No. 26-03, adopting Kitsap Transit's 2026 Goals. 
 
Discussion: 
 
0:28:14, Councilmember Mockler suggested that the Board set a date for the retreat during the 
current meeting while all members were present. 
 
0:29:53, Executive Director Clauson stated that he preferred to schedule the retreat at a later date, 
requesting time to secure an appropriate facility, a facilitator, and other elements needed to 
ensure a productive session. He noted that his target timeframe for the retreat would be in the 
spring, ideally by late spring at the latest. 
 
0:30:44, Commissioner Walters requested that a proposed retreat date be included on the next 
meeting agenda as a follow-up item. 
 
0:30:49, Executive Director Clauson agreed to Commissioner Walters’ request. 
 
0:30:50, Mayor Putaansuu concurred with the Executive Director’s approach to scheduling the 
retreat. He suggested that adding a couple of hours to a Board Work Study meeting would be a 
logical option, as those meetings are already on Board members’ calendars. 
 
0:31:30, Mayor Wheeler suggested that the Board discuss what they hope to achieve, what is not 
currently being achieved, and how goals and goal-setting should be defined. He added that goals 
should include measurable outcomes and that the Board should be prepared to consider what 
decisions they will be expected to make in support of those goals. 
 
0:33:34, Commissioner Walters summarized that Executive Director Clauson will return to the 
Board with a recommendation on holding either a retreat or an extended work study session to 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 13 of 41



discuss 2027 goals, along with a more strategic planning component. 
 
Motion passed with eight (8) ayes and one (1) nay (Councilmember Mockler).  
 

e. Presentation – Kitsap Transit 2026 World Cup Service Update  
 
0:34:24, Executive Director Clauson prefaced the presentation by noting that the 2026 World Cup 
is approaching quickly and that he wanted to review Kitsap Transit’s proposed plans for the event. 
He stated that he had asked Sanjay Bhatt to present the proposals so the Board could discuss 
them, refine them, and gain a clear understanding of the framework they are working with. 
 
0:35:43, Sanjay Bhatt, Marketing & Public Information Director, reported that development of the 
2026 World Cup response plan has been a collaborative effort among all department directors. 
He presented a detailed proposal for expanded transit service during the June and July event, 
including special night routes, park-and-ride shuttles, and ferry take-home buses, with service 
operating until midnight on game days.  
 
Discussion:  
 
0:38:57, Commissioner Root asked for clarification on what “take-home buses” are. 
 
0:39:00, Mr. Bhatt explained that take-home buses wait at the ferry terminal for arriving ferries, 
allowing passengers to board for drop-off-only service, with no additional passenger pickups 
beyond those coming off the ferry. 
 
0:39:24, Councilmember Mockler expressed concern that Bremerton businesses would be 
bypassed by the take-home bus service, resulting in a lost opportunity for local businesses to 
generate revenue. 
 
0:39:51, Executive Director Clauson clarified that the shuttles are not limited to a single trip. He 
noted that returning event-goers who wish to visit downtown businesses may do so, as the 
take-home bus service will operate until midnight, allowing passengers to catch a later bus after 
spending time downtown. 
 
The Board discussed concerns related to downtown Bremerton parking and enforcement, 
expectations for Bremerton-area events, and the proposed Fan Zone. Board members requested 
a copy of the 2026 World Cup Service Update presentation, and staff agreed to distribute it. 
 

f. Discussion – Return Grant Funds for Port Orchard Transit Center 
 
1:09:20, Executive Director Clauson explained that Kitsap Transit had secured a grant to plan for a 
Port Orchard Transit Center to support bus-to-ferry connections in downtown Port Orchard. A 
consultant was hired, and several site concepts were developed as part of the broader downtown 
redevelopment effort. He noted that Kitsap Transit had intended to purchase the building 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 14 of 41



currently housing the library to construct a permanent transit center on that footprint. However, 
the project has become politically sensitive, and the agency is nearing the deadline to utilize the 
grant funds. As a result, Kitsap Transit will be returning the funding to the federal government.  
 
1:10:49, Steffani Lillie, Services and Capital Development Director, reported that Kitsap Transit has 
expended $219,000 of the original $750,000 grant. Including the agency’s required match, the 
total planned investment was $937,000. Based on the funds spent to date and the remaining 
balance, Kitsap Transit will return $530,777 to the Federal Transit Administration. Lillie stated that 
this is the appropriate point to conclude the project, noting that the $219,000 expenditure 
resulted in a completed planning document and does not require repayment. She added that 
moving forward would obligate Kitsap Transit either to complete the remaining planning work or 
repay the full amount of the grant. 
 
Discussion: 
 
1:12:03, Mayor Putaansuu commented that the situation is unfortunate, noting that an improved 
transit center in downtown Port Orchard is important to the city’s redevelopment efforts. He 
stated that a majority of the Port Orchard City Council does not currently support the proposed 
location and prefers that the transit center be sited elsewhere. 
 
1:14:27, Commissioner Root asked whether there was any flexibility in the project, including 
options related to bus stops or sheltered stops. 
 
1:14:40, Ms. Lillie explained that because these were competitive grant funds rather than formula 
dollars, the remaining funds must be returned. 
 
1:15:40, Commissioner Walters noted that no action was required on this item. 
 
1:15:44, Executive Director Clauson confirmed that no Board action is required and stated that he 
wanted the Board to be informed before the funds are returned. He reiterated that Kitsap Transit 
will return the grant funds to the Federal Transit Administration. 
 
1:15:57, Commissioner Rolfes asked whether a communications strategy was in place to explain 
that Kitsap Transit is returning the grant funds and not proceeding with the transit center project. 
Commissioner Rolfes emphasized that the community should be informed about the status of the 
plan. 
 
1:17:59, Councilmember Rosapepe stated that any public notification should come directly from 
Kitsap Transit. 
 
1:18:22, Executive Director Clauson stated that if the Board wishes to communicate this 
information to the community, Kitsap Transit will proceed accordingly. 
 
1:18:34, The Board discussed whether to provide community notice regarding the return of grant 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 15 of 41



funds to the Federal Transit Administration and the decision to pause development of the Port 
Orchard Transit Center. The Board agreed to proceed with returning the funds without issuing a 
formal public statement. 
 
5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ITEMS 
 
1:22:52, Executive Director Clauson informed the Board of a correction to Resolution 26-05, 
Approve Purchase of Wheelchair Lift Vans, approved on January 6, 2026. The resolution had 
originally stated that the vans would be purchased using the Washington State DES Contract; 
however, the correct procurement contract is the State of Arizona Procurement Contract. He noted 
that all other elements of the purchase, including price, delivery, and vehicle specifications remain 
unchanged. 
 
Executive Director Clauson introduced Nicholas (Nick) Zylstra as the new Marine Services Director. 
 
1:23:55, Marine Services Director Nick Zylstra greeted the Board and shared that he previously 
worked for Argosy Cruises in Seattle. He expressed that he is excited to join Kitsap Transit. 
 
Executive Director Clauson reported that he had received pressure to operate a special Sunday 
ferry route to accommodate a Seattle Seahawks event. He noted that such service is not included 
in the current budget but suggested that the Board consider implementing a pre-paid ticket 
system in the future to offset the cost of similar requests. 
 
Executive Director Clauson invited the Board to tour the newly acquired third-floor space, noting 
that it is move-in ready aside from pending technology setup. 
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 
None. 
 
7. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER:  
 
1:28:39, Commissioner Rolfes stated that, in the interest of transparency, the meeting minutes 
should clearly reflect the decision made regarding the Port Orchard Transit Center and should 
include Steffani Lillie’s comments. 
 
8. ADJOURN: At 10:00 AM, Chairperson Walters adjourned the regular meeting.   
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Kitsap Transit at a regular meeting thereof, held on 
the 3rd day of February, 2026.  
        
Attest: Kathrine T. Walters, Chairperson 
  
Jackie Bidon, Clerk of the Board 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 16 of 41



Board of Commissioners Agenda Summary
Meeting Date:

AGENDA ITEM: 

SUBMITTED BY:         

TITLE:        

DEPARTMENT: 

EXHIBITS/ATTACHMENTS: 

BUDGETARY IMPACT (if applicable)

BUDG :         

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:  

SOURCE: 

REVIEWED BY:  

REVIEWED DATE: 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: 

02/03/2026

Resolution No. 26-09, Approve Kitsap Transit's Agency Safety Plan

John Clauson

Executive Director
Executive

Resolution No. 26-09 and Exhibit A 

Executive Director 

01/28/2026

Under 49 C.F.R. Part 673, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), requires Bus Transit systems to 
develop and implement a Safety Plan that follows a Safety Management System (SMS). Per the 
Federal Register, Vol. 83. No. 139, a final rule was issued requiring the Safety Plan to be signed by 
the Accountable Executive and adopted by the Board on an annual basis. The Safety Plan adopted 
by the board on December 3, 2024, was updated to account for changes to the 2026 Safety Plan.
Staff have worked with the Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan safety sub-committee to 
review and approve the proposed changes and agency safety targets as required by the Bipartisan 
Infrastructure Law requirements.

MOTION: Move to adopt Resolution No. 26-09, The Board of Commissioners hereby 
approve the 2026 Kitsap Transit Agency Safety Plan.

Board Meeting Packet  Page 17 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. 26-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF KITSAP TRANSIT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ADOPTING 
KITSAP TRANSIT’S AGENCY SAFETY PLAN 
 
WHEREAS, Kitsap Transit falls under the jurisdiction of the Federal Transit 

Administration (FTA) and is therefore required to annually adopt and implement a Safety 

Plan in accordance with 49 C.F.R. Part 673; and 

WHEREAS, staff has updated and amended the previously adopted Board 

approved Safety Plan to better align with the Safety Management System, as outlined in 

the Federal Register, Vol. 83, No. 139, issued on July 19, 2018, and in compliance with 

the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law; and 

WHEREAS, the Safety Plan, referenced herein as Exhibit A, must also be approved 

by the Safety Committee Labor and Management representatives, the Executive Director 

as the Accountable Executive, and approved by the Kitsap Transit Board of 

Commissioners on an annual basis; and 

WHEREAS, Kitsap Transit staff recommends the adoption of the 2026 Kitsap 

Transit Agency Safety Plan. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners hereby 

approves the attached Kitsap Transit Agency Safety Plan. 

ADOPTED by the Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners at a regular meeting held 

on the 3rd day of February 2026. 

 
 
    
 Katherine T. Walters, Chairperson 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Jackie Bidon, Clerk of the Board 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 18 of 41



Board of Commissioners Agenda Summary
Meeting Date:

AGENDA ITEM: 

SUBMITTED BY:         

TITLE:        

DEPARTMENT: 

EXHIBITS/ATTACHMENTS: 

BUDGETARY IMPACT (if applicable)

BUDG :         

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:  

SOURCE: 

REVIEWED BY:  

REVIEWED DATE: 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: 

02/03/2026

Resolution No. 26-10, Approve Marine Services 2026 Insurance 
Renewal
Paul Shinners

Director
Finance

Resolution No. 26-10 and Exhibit A 

$ 816,000.00

$ 793,214.00

Operating

Executive Director 

01/26/2026

This resolution authorizes the renewal and payment for the marine insurance policies covering ten 
passenger ferry vessels and eight passenger ferry terminals associated with Kitsap Transit's ferry 
operations in Bremerton, Port Orchard, Kingston, Southworth, and Seattle for the period February 
20, 2026, through February 19, 2027. The marine insurance policies provide for vessel hull 
coverage, pollution, and protection and indemnity (marine liability) for its operations, passengers, 
and crew. The marine insurance policies also include coverage for property and general liability at 
the ferry terminals. Limits for protection and indemnity are $1.0 billion and $10 million for the 
general liability and pollution policies. The current policy premium of $793K reflects a modest 
increase from $789K in 2025.

MOTION: Move to adopt Resolution No. 26-10, authorizing the payment of the 2026 liability 
and property insurance policies for Kitsap Transit's passenger ferry vessels and facilities as 
provided in this resolution in an amount of seven hundred ninety-three thousand two hundred 
fourteen dollars ($793,214).

Board Meeting Packet  Page 19 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. 26-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF KITSAP TRANSIT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AUTHORIZING 
STAFF TO RENEW AND PAY THE LIABILITY AND PROPERTY INSURANCE POLICIES FOR 
KITSAP TRANSIT’S PASSENGER FERRY VESSELS AND FACILITIES 

 
WHEREAS, Kitsap Transit provides passenger ferry service to Seattle and within Kitsap 

County; and 

WHEREAS, the marine service insurance policies for property and liability are due to be 

renewed as of February 20, 2026; and 

WHEREAS, Kitsap Transit must renew its insurance coverage for ten (10) passenger ferry 

vessels and eight (8) passenger ferry terminals owned or associated with its ferry operations in 

Bremerton, Port Orchard, Kingston, Southworth, and Seattle; and 

WHEREAS, the marine insurance policies provide coverage for protection and indemnity 

for its operations, passengers and crews, hull coverage for its vessels, pollution liability, property 

and general liability at its associated ferry terminals; and 

WHEREAS, the policy limits for general liability and pollution policies are ten million dollars 

($10,000,000) and one billion dollars ($1,000,000,000) for protection and indemnity liability related 

to ferry operations; and 

WHEREAS, Exhibit A, attached and incorporated herein, summarizes the premium 

associated with this one-year renewal of seven hundred ninety-three thousand two hundred 

fourteen dollars ($793,214). 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes 

Kitsap Transit staff to renew and pay the liability and property insurance policies for Kitsap Transit’s 

passenger ferry vessels and facilities as provided in this resolution. 

ADOPTED by the Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners at a regular meeting held on the 

3rd day of February 2026. 

    
 Katherine T. Walters, Chairperson 
ATTEST: 
  
Jackie Bidon, Clerk of the Board  

Board Meeting Packet  Page 20 of 41



Exhibit A 

 

 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 21 of 41



Board of Commissioners Agenda Summary
Meeting Date:

AGENDA ITEM: 

SUBMITTED BY:         

TITLE:        

DEPARTMENT: 

EXHIBITS/ATTACHMENTS: 

BUDGETARY IMPACT (if applicable)

BUDG :         

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:  

SOURCE: 

REVIEWED BY:  

REVIEWED DATE: 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: 

02/03/2026

Resolution No. 26-11, Approve 25-988 CO 4 MV Solano Repairs

Steffani Lillie

Director
Capital

Resolution No. 26-11

$ 885,255.00

$ 57,003.00

Capital 

Executive Director 

01/28/2026

Resolution 26-11 authorizes staff to approve Change Order Four (4) to contract KT 25-988 for the 
MV Solano USCG Inspection and Repair project. This change is addressing unexpected internal 
repairs to the engine.
Staff has conducted a cost analysis and it has been deemed fair and reasonable for the work that 
is required.  
The total expenditure for KT 25-988 Change Order Four (4) is fifty-seven thousand three dollars 
($57,003).  

MOTION: Move to adopt Resolution No. 26-11, authorizing staff to approve Change Order 
Four (4) for KT 25-988, in the amount of fifty-seven thousand three dollars ($57,003). 
Thus, increasing the contract total to eight hundred eighty-five thousand two hundred 
fifty-five dollars ($885,255), and reauthorizes the Executive Director's 10 percent authority 
in accordance with Kitsap Transit's Procurement Policy.

Board Meeting Packet  Page 22 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. 26-11 
 

A RESOLUTION OF KITSAP TRANSIT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
APPROVING CHANGE ORDER 4 FOR CONTRACT KT 25-988 MV SOLANO 
USCG INSPECTION AND REPAIRS PROJECT  
 
WHEREAS, at its regular meeting on September 02, 2025, the Kitsap Transit (KT) 

Board of Commissioners approved Resolution No. 25-61 authorizing staff to award 

Contract KT 25-988 to Nichols Brothers Boat Builders (NBBB) in the amount of seven 

hundred seventy-six thousand five hundred eighty-nine dollars ($776,589) for the United 

States Coast Guard (USCG) scheduled marine vessel repair and a two (2) year inspection 

of MV Solano; and 

WHEREAS, Change Orders One (1) for valve replacement, Two (2) for deck bits, 

and Three (3) for glare shields increased the cumulative change order amount to eight 

hundred twenty-eight thousand two hundred fifty-three dollars ($828,253); and 

WHEREAS, the requested Change Order Four (4) is to conduct internal engine 

repairs that were not anticipated when the project was bid; and  

WHEREAS, staff reviewed Change Order Four (4), in the amount of fifty-seven 

thousand three dollars ($57,003) and determined the costs to be fair and reasonable 

based on the Independent Cost Estimate (ICE); and 

WHEREAS, approval of Change Order Four (4) increases the cumulative change 

order total, which exceeds the Executive Director’s 10 percent authority and requires 

Board approval under Kitsap Transit’s Procurement Policy; and 

WHEREAS, funding for the entirety of this project is included in the approved 2025 

and 2026 Capital Budgets under Ferry Fund. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners hereby 

authorizes staff to approve Change Order Four (4), in the amount of fifty-seven thousand 

three dollars ($57,003), thus, increasing the contract total to eight hundred eighty-five 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 23 of 41



thousand two hundred fifty-five dollars ($885,255), and reauthorizes the Executive 

Director’s 10 percent authority in accordance with Kitsap Transit’s Procurement Policy. 

ADOPTED by the Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners at a regular meeting held 

on the 3rd day of February, 2026. 

 
 
    
 Katherine T. Walters, Chairperson 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Jackie Bidon, Clerk of the Board 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 24 of 41



Board of Commissioners Agenda Summary
Meeting Date:

AGENDA ITEM: 

SUBMITTED BY:         

TITLE:        

DEPARTMENT: 

EXHIBITS/ATTACHMENTS: 

BUDGETARY IMPACT (if applicable)

BUDG :         

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:  

SOURCE: 

REVIEWED BY:  

REVIEWED DATE: 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: 

02/03/2026

Resolution No. 26-12, Award KT 25-014 Reliance Engine Swings 
and Repairs
Nicholas Zylstra

Director 
Marine Services 

Resolution No. 26-12

$ 286,985.00

$ 286,985.00

Operating

Executive Director 

01/23/2026

Resolution 24-12 authorizes staff to award KT 25-014 to Platypus Marine, Inc. for Reliance Engine 
Swings and Repairs project. 
The total additional expenditure for KT 25-014 Reliance Engine Swings and Repairs project is two 
hundred eighty-six thousand nine hundred eighty-five dollars ($286,985.00). This expenditure is 
included in the 2026 Operating Budget Ferry Funds.
  
  

MOTION: Move to adopt Resolution No. 26-12, Authorize staff to award KT 25-014 to Platypus 
Marine, Inc. for Reliance Engine Swings and Repairs project in the amount of two hundred 
eighty-six thousand nine hundred eighty-five dollars ($286,985.00).

Board Meeting Packet  Page 25 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. 26-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF KITSAP TRANSIT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AUTHORIZING STAFF TO AWARD A CONTRACT FOR KT 25-014 RELIANCE 
ENGINE SWINGS AND REPAIRS PROJECT TO PLATYPUS MARINE INC 
 
WHEREAS, on December 30, 2025, procurement staff released Invitation for Bids 

KT 25-014 Reliance Engine Swings and Repairs project; and 

WHEREAS, the bid included the removal of two (2) main engines from the port 

engine room, two (2) main engines from the starboard engine room and installing owner-

furnished spare engines as replacements; and 

WHEREAS, on January 21, 2026, Kitsap Transit received three (3) bids in which 

Platypus Marine, Inc.’s bid amount of two hundred eighty-six thousand nine hundred 

eighty-five dollars ($286,985), was the apparent lowest bidder pending responsive and 

responsibility checks; and 

WHEREAS, procurement staff conducted a price analysis comparing Platypus 

Marine, Inc.’s offered price against Kitsap Transit’s Independent Cost Estimate (ICE) and 

deemed the pricing is fair and reasonable; and 

WHEREAS, procurement staff completed the responsiveness and responsibility 

checks and has deemed Platypus Marine, Inc. responsive and responsible; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of this project was included in the approved 2026 Operating 

Budget-Ferry Fund approved via resolution 25-73. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners hereby 

authorize staff to award KT 25-014 Reliance Engine Swings and Repairs project to Platypus 

Marine, Inc. in the amount of two hundred eighty-six thousand nine hundred eighty-five 

dollars ($286,985). 

ADOPTED by the Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners at a regular meeting held 

on the 3rd day of February, 2026. 

 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 26 of 41



 
    
 Katherine T. Walters, Chairperson 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Jackie Bidon, Clerk of the Board 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 27 of 41



Board of Commissioners Agenda Summary
Meeting Date:

AGENDA ITEM: 

SUBMITTED BY:         

TITLE:        

DEPARTMENT: 

EXHIBITS/ATTACHMENTS: 

BUDGETARY IMPACT (if applicable)

BUDG :         

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:  

SOURCE: 

REVIEWED BY:  

REVIEWED DATE: 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: 

02/03/2026

Resolution No. 26-13, Award Contract Federal Legislative Liaison

John Clauson

Executive Director
Executive
Resolution No. 26-13; Exhibit A: Recommendation to Award

$ 72,000.00

$ 48,000.00

Operating

Executive Director 

01/28/2026

Kitsap Transit's contract for Federal Legislative Liaison ended in 2025, so staff issued a Request for 
Proposals. Three proposals were received for KT 25-006 Federal Liaison Services. All three 
proposals were deemed responsive and were forwarded to Kitsap Transit's Evaluation Committee. 
Evaluations were performed based on experience and qualifications, past performance and cost. 
Covino Smith & Simon Inc. (CSSI) scored highest at 900 out of 1,000, and pricing was deemed to 
be fair and responsible.

This resolution authorizes staff to enter into a contract with CSSI for a period of three years with 
one two-year renewal option. The resolution further delegates authority to the Executive Director 
to exercise the renewal option.

MOTION: Move to adopt Resolution No. 26-13, authorizing staff to enter into contract KT 25-006 
with Covino Smith & Simon Inc. for Federal Legislative Liaison Services for three years and 
delegating authority to the Executive Director to exercise the additional renewal option.

Board Meeting Packet  Page 28 of 41



RESOLUTION NO. 26-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF KITSAP TRANSIT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AUTHORIZING STAFF TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR FEDERAL 
LEGISLATIVE LIAISON SERVICES 
 
WHEREAS, Kitsap Transit’s contract with Norm Dicks & Associates, LLC, ended 

June 30, 2025, so staff issued a Request for Proposal, KT 25-006 Federal Liaison Services 

on November 25, 2025; and 

WHEREAS, on December 19, 2025, Kitsap Transit received three (3) proposals: 

Covino Smith & Simon Inc. (CSSI), DCG, and CFM Advocates; and  

WHEREAS, all three proposals were deemed responsive and were forwarded to 

Kitsap Transit’s Evaluation Committee for review; and  

WHEREAS, Kitsap Transit’s Evaluation Committee evaluated the proposals based 

on experience, qualifications, past performance, and cost; and  

WHEREAS, Procurement staff tabulated the score with Covino Smith & Simon Inc. 

scoring 900, DCG scoring 645.45, and CFM Advocates scoring 853 out of a possible 1,000; 

and  

WHEREAS, Procurement staff completed the responsiveness and responsibility 

checks, deeming Covino Smith & Simon Inc. responsive and responsible; and 

WHEREAS, service costs for the three-year (3-year) contract is forty-eight 

thousand dollars ($48,000) per year; and 

WHEREAS, the contract includes one (1) two-year (2-year) extension; and   

WHEREAS, staff recommends entering into contract KT 25-006 with Covino Smith 

& Simon Inc. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners hereby 

authorizes staff to enter into contract KT 25-006 with Covino Smith & Simon Inc., for 

Federal Legislative Liaison Services for three (3) years with one (1) two-year (2-year) 

option; and  

Board Meeting Packet  Page 29 of 41



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners delegates authority 

to the Executive Director to exercise the renewal option for year four (4) and year five (5).  

ADOPTED by the Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners at a regular meeting held 

on the 3rd day of February, 2026. 

 
 
    
 Katherine T. Walters, Chairperson 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Jackie Bidon, Clerk of the Board 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 30 of 41



 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE: January 28, 2026  
TO: John Clauson  
FROM: Patrick Rogers  
SUBJECT: Recommendation to Award- Federal Liaison Services  
 
 
On November 25, 2025, Procurement Staff released a Request for Proposals; KT 25-006 
Federal Liaison Services project. On December 19th, Kitsap Transit received three (3) 
proposals in response to our request. All three (3) proposals were deemed responsive 
and forwarded to the Evaluation Committee for scoring.  
 
Kitsap Transit’s Evaluation Committee evaluated the proposals based on Experience and 
Qualifications, Past Performance, and Cost; as described in the solicitation. When the 
evaluations were complete, Procurement tabulated the scores and Covino Smith & 
Simon, Inc (CSSI) was the highest scoring proposer. 
 

Vendor Total 

Covino Smith & Simon Inc 900 
DCG 645.45 

CFM Advocates 853 
 
Procurement Staff has completed the responsiveness and responsibility checks and has 
deemed CSSI responsive and responsible. The pricing offered has been deemed “fair 
and reasonable”. Therefore, it is my recommendation that Covino Smith & Simon, Inc 
be awarded the KT 26-006 Federal Liaison Services project in the annual amount of 
$48,000.00.  
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 360-479-6960. 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 31 of 41



 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Patrick Rogers 
Purchasing Supervisor  

Board Meeting Packet  Page 32 of 41



 

1 
 

 
To: Kitsap Transit 
From: Doty & Associates, Inc. (prepared by J. Dylan Doty) 
Date: January 24, 2026 
Re: February 2026 Board Meeting – Legislative Report 

 
Session Overview 
The 2026 Legislature convened on Monday, January 12, for its 60-day session.  An avalanche of 
new bills has been introduced, despite the condensed timeframe of the session, and committee 
chairs and leadership are feeling the crunch as they work to satisfy their members’ desires to 
pass multiple bills each.  The first significant cutoff date is in sight, with February 4 marking the 
policy committee cutoff, followed shortly by the fiscal committee cutoff and then floor action.  
Below are key dates for the remainder of the session. 
 

Wednesday, February 4 – Policy Committee Cutoff. Last day to read in committee 
reports in house of origin, except House fiscal committees and Senate Ways & Means 
and Transportation committees. 

 
Monday, February 9 – Fiscal Committee Cutoff. Last day to read in committee reports 
from House fiscal committees and Senate Ways & Means and Transportation 
committees in house of origin. 

 
Tuesday, February 17 – House of Origin Cutoff. Last day to consider bills in house of 
origin (5 p.m.). 
 
Wednesday, February 25 – Policy Committee Cutoff - Opposite House. Last day to read 
in committee reports from opposite house, except House fiscal committees and Senate 
Ways & Means and Transportation committees. 
 
Monday, March 2 – Fiscal Committee Cutoff - Opposite House. Last day to read in 
opposite house committee reports from House fiscal committees and Senate Ways & 
Means and Transportation committees. 
 
Friday, March 6 – Opposite House Cutoff. Until 5 p.m., last day to consider opposite 
house bills with the exception of budgets, matters necessary to implement budgets, 
matters that affect state revenue, initiatives to the legislature and alternatives, 
differences between the two houses, and business related to the interim or closing the 
session. 
 
Thursday, March 12 – Sine Die. Last day allowed for regular session under state 
constitution. 

 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 33 of 41



 

2 
 

Bills of Interest 
As we await the release of House and Senae budget proposals, a number of individual bills have 
been introduced that could impact transit operations.  A full bill tracking list is shared weekly 
and is available for review, but below are several key bills of potential interest. 
 
SB 6253 – Concerning PTBA Governing Bodies (Krishnadasan). Makes the current authorized 
labor representative a voting member of the PTBA board. The bill would exclude that member 
from attending any executive session regarding issues between the employer and the 
employees, arbitration, and chief executive officer reviews.  

• No hearing yet scheduled. 
 
HB 2550/SB 6252 – Free Transit for Certain Community and Technical College Students 
(Taylor/C. Wilson). Authorizes students enrolled in a degree-seeking or certificate-seeking 
program at a community or technical college as defined in RCW 28B.50.030 to ride public 
transit for free under the transit support grant program. 

• HB 2550 – scheduled for public hearing on 1/28 

• SB 6252 – no hearing yet scheduled 
 
HB 2134 – Concerning regional transportation planning organizations (Duerr).  Requires the 
regional transportation plans of certain regional transportation planning organizations to 
provide for reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and vehicle miles traveled. The requirement 
currently applies to Benton, Clark, King, Kitsap, Pierce, Snohomish, Spokane, Skagit, Thurston, 
Whatcom, and potentially Franklin counties. 

• Received public hearing on 1/19 
 
HB 2588/SB 5839 – Concerning County Ferry District Authority (Timmons/Shewmake). The type 
of ferries that county ferry districts may construct, purchase, operate, and maintain is 
broadened by removing the limitation that such ferries be passenger-only, thereby allowing 
county ferry districts to provide additional types of ferry service, for example auto ferry service. 

• HB 2588 – scheduled for public hearing on 1/30 

• SB 5839 – received public hearing on 1/22 
 
HB 2307 – Commute Trip Reduction Program (Salahuddin). Removes the current 6:00 a.m. to 
9:00 a.m. timeframe for determining major employers, commute trips, major employment 
installations, and major worksites. 

• Received public hearing on 1/21 
 
HB 2251 – Climate Commitment Act Accounts (Fitzgibbon).  Adds the Working Families’ Tax 
Credit as an explicitly authorized use of CCA revenues by allowing expenditures from a new 
Climate Commitment Act operating account to fund it. In effect, the bill creates a new ongoing 
funding source for the tax credit using CCA auction proceeds rather than state general fund 
dollars.  Some argue this marks a policy shift by directing cap-and-invest revenues to a cash-

Board Meeting Packet  Page 34 of 41



 

3 
 

transfer affordability program rather than limiting those dollars to projects with a direct or 
measurable emissions-reduction nexus. While total CCA revenue is unchanged, the 
restructuring potentially increases competition for limited dollars. 

• Received public hearing on 1/19; scheduled for possible committee vote 1/29 
 
Washington State Transit Association (WSTA) 
WSTA’s 1st Quarter board meeting takes place in Olympia on January 26 & 27.  WSTA will meet 
on campus in the John A. Cherberg Building, and key transportation leaders from the 
legislature, the Governor’s Office, and state agencies will be joining to provide updates. 
 
Washington Highway Users Federation (WHUF) 
WHUF convenes each Wednesday morning from 7:00-7:50 am throughout the legislative 
session.  These weekly briefings serve as a forum for transportation leaders from all parts of 
state government to provide insight and stay in touch with the larger group of transportation-
related stakeholders.  Private industry, cities, counties, transit agencies, planners, engineers, 
and state government representatives are all in the room.  While the briefings are held in 
person in Olympia, there is a virtual option for those who wish to listen and participate 
remotely.  This year’s schedule so far: 
 

Week 1 – Megan Cotton, Governor Ferguson's Transportation Policy Advisor; and Erik 
Hansen, Senior Budget Advisor on Transportation to Governor Ferguson 

 
Week 2 – Senator Curtis King, Ranking Republican Member, Senate Transportation 
Committee 

 
Week 3 – Rep. Andrew Barkis, Ranking Republican Member, House Transportation 
Committee 

Board Meeting Packet  Page 35 of 41



Board Meeting Packet  Page 36 of 41



Board Meeting Packet  Page 37 of 41



Bus Fund Ferry Fund Consolidated

          Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,233,100                   2,418,612                   8,651,711                  

          Investment - General Fund 73,141,223                 16,730,995                 89,872,218                

          Investment - Stimulus Reserve 23,837,990                 -                             23,837,990                

          Investment - Debt Service Reserve -                              1,243,404                   1,243,404                  

          Investment - Contingency Reserve 4,000,000                   -                             4,000,000                  

          Investment - Fuel Reserve 2,383,925                   573,400                      2,957,325                  

          Tax Receivable 10,084,136                 3,791,827                   13,875,963                

          Capital Grants Receivable 135,411                      135,551                      270,962                     

          Operating Grants Receivable 5,707,473                   2,423,962                   8,131,435                  

          Accounts Receivable 428,770                      998,112                      1,426,882                  

          Due from Transit -                              333,998                      333,998                     

          Inventory 1,753,253                   6,366,007                   8,119,260                  

          Prepaid Expenses 1,360,945                   496,941                      1,857,886                  

     TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 129,066,225$             35,512,809$               164,579,034$            

          Fixtures & Equipment, Net of Depreciation 6,168,189                   46,952                        6,215,141                  

          Facilities, Net of Depreciation 47,480,080                 9,577,690                   57,057,770                

          Rolling Stock, Net Depreciation 33,786,667                 65,764                        33,852,431                

          Passenger Ferries, Net Depreciation -                              65,092,564                 65,092,564                

          Capital Work in Progress 41,565,306                 7,395,269                   48,960,575                

          Leasehold Improvement, Net Amortization 2,910,325                   -                             2,910,325                  

          Leased Facilities, Net Amortization 199,250                      2,945,480                   3,144,729                  

          Land 24,643,189                 -                             24,643,189                

          Intangible Assets, Net Amortization 227,134                      -                             227,134                     

     TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS 156,980,139$             85,123,718$               242,103,857$            

TOTAL ASSETS 286,046,365$             120,636,527$             406,682,892$            

          Accounts Payable 1,393,032                   1,531,046                   2,924,078                  

          Due to Ferry 333,998                      -                             333,998                     

          Payables to Other Transits 115,111                      -                             115,111                     

          Deferred Revenues 79,221                        4,155                          83,376                       

          Accrued Wages Payable 2,822,556                   689,116                      3,511,672                  

          Employee Benefit Payable 270,221                      56,211                        326,432                     

          Interest Payable -                              236,312                      236,312                     

          Short-Term Debt -                              3,080,000                   3,080,000                  

          Long-Term Debt -                              20,075,000                 20,075,000                

     TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,014,139$                 25,671,841$               30,685,980$              

          Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 156,980,139               61,968,718                 218,948,857              

          Restricted 30,221,915                 1,243,404                   31,465,319                

          Unrestricted 93,830,171                 31,752,565                 125,582,736              

     TOTAL NET POSITION 281,032,226               94,964,686                 375,996,912              

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 286,046,365$             120,636,527$             406,682,892$            

Kitsap Transit
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2025

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

     LIABILITIES

NET POSITION

ASSETS

Board Meeting Packet  Page 38 of 41



2025 Budget Current Month
YTD 

Expenditures Encumbrance 
Budget 

Remaining ($)

Budget 
Remaining 

(%) 
Cumulative 

Expenditures
Local Funds 

Budget
Grant Funds 

Budget
Total Funds 

Budget

Transit Fund
Routed Coaches 20,610,452            -                          4,268                 -                           20,606,184            100% 4,268                     8,334,949              12,275,503            20,610,452      

Access Bus & Van/VanLink Replacements 8,592,059               -                          2,669,525         2,904,778               3,017,756              35% 2,669,525             1,661,310              6,930,749              8,592,059        

Inductive Charging (Bases) 4,608,000               -                          -                     4,608,000               -                          0% -                         768,000                 3,840,000              4,608,000        

Electric Bus (10) & Charleston & North Base Chargers  12,093,655            -                          3,856,296         3,841,221               4,396,138              36% 7,932,971             2,418,731              9,674,924              12,093,655      

Supervisor Vehicles 262,223                  -                          396,942             -                           (134,719)                -51% 579,769                262,223                 -                          262,223            

Worker Driver Buses (5 Electric) 5,379,275               -                          5,870,376         (491,101)                -9% 5,870,376             5,379,275              -                          5,379,275        

Gillig Rebuilds 700,000                  -                          6,329                 -                           693,671                 99% 619,583                700,000                 -                          700,000            

Vanpool Replacements 735,640                  -                          -                     -                           735,640                 100% 610,062                735,640                 -                          735,640            

APC Systems Equipment/Digital Signage 7,769,683               124,635                 1,053,350         3,844,957               2,871,376              37% 4,573,634             7,769,683              -                          7,769,683        

Operations Bases
Harborside:
Harborside Tenant Improvements 20,000                    -                          14,870               -                           5,130                      26% 14,870                   20,000                   -                          20,000              

Third Floor Design and Remodel 500,000                  -                          -                     -                           500,000                 100% -                         500,000                 -                          500,000            

Charleston Base
Crash Deterrent System 200,000                  -                          103,600             96,400                    48% 103,600                200,000                 -                          200,000            

Dispatch Furniture 80,000                    51,572                   51,572               28,428                    36% 121,562                80,000                   -                          80,000              

Mini-Heat Pumps (5) 95,000                    -                          -                     -                           95,000                    100% -                         95,000                   -                          95,000              

Charleston Generator Replacement 2,072,895               -                          -                     2,072,895              100% -                         414,579                 1,658,316              2,072,895        

Northbase
North Base HD Maintenance Facility (Planning) 2,700,417               16,322                   1,018,650         889,084                   792,683                 29% 1,657,769             19,459                   2,680,958              2,700,417        

North Base HD Maintenance Facility RAISE CN 21,250,000            20,991                   20,991               -                           21,229,009            100% 20,991                   4,250,000              17,000,000            21,250,000      

South Base
South Base (ESA, Permits, CM) 215,483                  10,983                   168,081             79,155                     (31,753)                  -15% 291,374                42,603                   172,880                 215,483            

Transfer Centers / Park & Ride
Hwy 16 Park & Ride Planning and Design (Ruby Creek) 3,157,825               148                         450,575             58,702                     2,648,548              84% 1,657,183             587,652                 2,570,173              3,157,825        

HWY 16 Park & Ride Construction (Ruby Creek) 19,070,812            -                          289,376             -                           18,781,436            98% 745,567                8,648,936              10,421,876            19,070,812      

Sewer Lift Station Highway 16 (Ruby Creek) 3,307,251               -                          77,526               739,701                   2,490,025              75% 216,474                3,307,251              -                          3,307,251        

Silverdale Transfer Center 4,766,587               -                          470,329             58,233                     4,238,025              89% 470,329                1,125,000              3,641,587              4,766,587        

Gateway Bus Storage Facility &  Park and Ride PE/Design 842,400                  8,660                      272,696             194,962                   374,742                 44% 427,294                122,400                 720,000                 842,400            

Gateway Center Rehabilitation Design and Construction 900,000                  -                          -                     -                           900,000                 100% 160,482                900,000                 -                          900,000            

Gateway Training Room Expansion & Access CSA Move 500,000                  -                          -                     -                           500,000                 100% -                         500,000                 -                          500,000            

SR104 P&R PE/Design 560,000                  23,082                   317,741             -                           242,259                 43% 513,597                85,000                   475,000                 560,000            

Port Orchard Transit Center Planning 665,867                  -                          -                     325,298                   340,569                 51% 258,799                133,174                 532,693                 665,867            

Bus Stops (Shelters, pads, and Construction) 100,000                  -                          -                     -                           100,000                 100% -                         100,000                 -                          100,000            

West Bremerton Hydrogen Fueling & P&R (Design & ROW) 6,880,484               -                          -                     -                           6,880,484              100% 2,529,658             2,120,953              4,759,531              6,880,484        

Poulsbo Park & Ride 2,735,738               -                          8,775                 334,091                   2,392,872              87% 230,648                1,345,738              1,390,000              2,735,738        

Inductive Charging (BTC, STC, WBTC & BITC) 2,255,000               325,832                 7,305,297         (341,407)                 (4,708,890)             -209% 7,560,164             2,085,000              170,000                 2,255,000        

Silverdale Park & Ride  (Design & ROW) 150,000                  -                          -                     -                           150,000                 100% -                         150,000                 -                          150,000            

Operator Training Facility 1,200,000               -                          101,824             414,579                   683,597                 57% 101,824                1,200,000              -                          1,200,000        

Day Road Park & Ride (Design & Construction) 11,103,497            20,312                   396,740             1,911,337               8,795,420              79% 587,423                3,094,117              8,009,380              11,103,497      

Equipment and Systems
Computer Infrastructure Improvements 67,000                    -                          -                     -                           67,000                    100% -                         67,000                   -                          67,000              

Servers and Capitalized Computer Equip. 70,000                    -                          305                     -                           69,696                    100% 196,791                70,000                   -                          70,000              

Capital Budget And Expenditures Capital Funding 

Capital Work In Progress - December 2025

Board Meeting Packet  Page 39 of 41



2025 Budget Current Month
YTD 

Expenditures Encumbrance 
Budget 

Remaining ($)

Budget 
Remaining 

(%) 
Cumulative 

Expenditures
Local Funds 

Budget
Grant Funds 

Budget
Total Funds 

Budget

Capital Budget And Expenditures Capital Funding 

Capital Work In Progress - December 2025

VEEM Backup and Recover Software/Server 25,000                    -                          72,898               -                           (47,898)                  -192% 72,898                   25,000                   -                          25,000              

APC UPS for Servers 60,000                    -                          -                     -                           60,000                    100% -                         60,000                   -                          60,000              

IP Cameras (Bremerton, PO Dock, South Base, CII) 947,500                  -                          -                     -                           947,500                 100% 264,102                397,500                 550,000                 947,500            

Digital Bus Stop Panels (APC Dep) 100,000                  -                          -                     -                           100,000                 100% -                         100,000                 -                          100,000            

Payroll System Implementation 50,000                    -                          54,815               14,685                     (19,500)                  -39% 54,815                   50,000                   -                          50,000              

Event Bleachers 8,000                      -                          -                     -                           8,000                      100% -                         8,000                      -                          8,000                

Maintenace Training Equipment (Encumbered) 125,000                  -                          21,378               -                           103,622                 83% 129,555                125,000                 -                          125,000            

Simulator Programming 170,000                  -                          317,353             -                           (147,353)                -87% 317,353                170,000                 -                          170,000            

Radio System Upgrade 500,000                  -                          -                     -                           500,000                 100% -                         500,000                 -                          500,000            

Website Content Management 150,000                  -                          -                     -                           150,000                 100% -                         150,000                 -                          150,000            

Transit Fund Total 148,352,743          602,536                 25,392,473       19,877,377             103,082,893         69% 41,565,306          60,879,173           87,473,570           148,352,743    

Ferry Fund
Ferry Vessels
Owner Representation (New Vessels) 2,000,000               -                          -                     -                           2,000,000              100% -                         2,000,000              -                          2,000,000        

Electric Fast Foil Ferry Design & Prototype 5,750,000               -                          1,472,060         969,710                   3,308,229              58% 1,903,668             550,000                 5,200,000              5,750,000        

Kingston Fast Ferry 17,531,963            -                          -                     -                           17,531,963            100% -                         4,031,963              13,500,000            17,531,963      

Electric Foot Ferry  & Infrastructure Design and Construction Waterman II 14,735,674            -                          -                     907,044                   13,828,630            94% 1,603,519             1,695,503              13,040,171            14,735,674      

Ferry Terminal 
Seattle Terminal PE 6,846,734               30,507                   1,326,140         5,102,347               418,247                 6% 2,419,212             1,193,570              5,653,164              6,846,734        

Southworth Terminal Redevelopment (WSF Partner) 3,103,804               -                          136,220             3,102,691               (135,107)                -4% 137,091                853,804                 2,250,000              3,103,804        

Annapolis Environmental Study 118,925                  -                          2,911                 -                           116,015                 98% 136,699                118,925                 -                          118,925            

POF Preventative Maintenance 5,011,818               197,232                 573,487             -                           4,438,331              89% 829,218                -                          5,011,818              5,011,818        

Breakwater at Port Orchard Marina (Partnership) 1,000,000               -                          -                     -                           1,000,000              100% 1,007                     1,000,000              -                          1,000,000        

Spare Parts Lady & Commander 148,311                  -                          -                     -                           148,311                 100% -                         -                          148,311                 148,311            

Marine Maintenance Fac. (Locate, ROW & Concept. Design) 825,425                  -                          8,190                 -                           817,235                 99% 356,528                825,425                 -                          825,425            

Marine Maintenance Fac. Environmental 2,250,000               -                          -                     -                           2,250,000              100% -                         2,250,000              -                          2,250,000        

PO Intermodal Terminal PE 1,022,059               -                          -                     -                           1,022,059              100% -                         170,343                 851,716                 1,022,059        

Ferry Tools & Equipment -                          -                         

Marine Speciality Tools -                           -                          8,328                 -                           (8,328)                     8,328                     

Ultra Parts Cleaner 40,000                    -                          -                     -                           40,000                    100% -                         40,000                   -                          40,000              

Ferry Fund Total 60,384,713            227,740                 3,527,336         10,081,793             46,775,585            77% 7,395,269             14,729,533           45,655,180           60,384,713      

Grand Total 208,737,456          830,276                 28,919,809       29,959,169             149,858,478         72% 48,960,575          75,608,706           133,128,750         208,737,456    

Board Meeting Packet  Page 40 of 41



Kitsap Transit Diesel Costs 
Updated through 

January 2026

Per-gallon average price 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
January $1.99 $1.68 $2.89 $3.50 $4.72 $3.04 $3.04
February $1.80 $2.04 $3.18 $3.40 $4.20 $3.10
March $1.31 $2.15 $3.90 $3.46 $2.99 $3.06
April $1.04 $2.07 $4.30 $3.48 $3.20 $3.09
May $1.08 $2.23 $4.30 $3.00 $3.01 $3.41
June $1.25 $2.44 $5.10 $3.25 $3.04 $3.70
July $1.36 $2.37 $4.99 $4.08 $3.14 $3.82
August $1.37 $2.47 $3.99 $4.18 $2.87 $3.55
September $1.27 $2.41 $3.89 $4.35 $3.06 $3.71
October $1.38 $2.73 $4.42 $3.71 $3.02 $3.56
November $1.72 $2.73 $4.35 $3.51 $3.00 $3.42
December $1.64 $2.72 $2.89 $3.30 $2.87 $3.09

Monthly Avg. Cost YTD 1.43$           2.34$         4.02$            3.60$         3.26$         3.38$         3.04$         
Budgeted Per-Gallon Price 3.00$           2.50$         3.00$            5.00$         5.00$         4.50$         3.80$         

In January, KT paid $3.04 a gallon for fuel compared to $3.09 in December. The year-to-date per-gallon average price as of 
February was $3.04 compared $3.80 a gallon for fuel budgeted for 2026.

$1.43 

$2.34 

$4.02 

$3.60 

$3.26 
$3.38 

$2.27 

$3.00 

$2.50 

$3.00 

$5.00 $5.00 

$4.50

$3.80 

$1.00

$1.50

$2.00

$2.50

$3.00

$3.50

$4.00

$4.50

$5.00

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Sum of MONTHLY AVG Sum of BUDGET PRICE

Board Meeting Packet  Page 41 of 41


	5.a Warrants for December 2025
	SUBJECT: Ratification of Cash and Registered Warrants
	Paul Shinners, Finance Director

	5.b 2026_01_06 Board Meeting Minutes
	5.c 2026_1_20  Board Meeting Minutes
	5.d 1 Resolution No.  26-09 Approve 2026 KT Agency Safety Plan Summary
	5.d 2 Resolution No. 26-09 Approve 2026 KT Agency Safety Plan
	RESOLUTION NO. 26-09

	5.e 1 Resolution No. 26-10, Approve Marine Services 2026 Insurance Renewal Summary
	5.e 2 Resolution No. 26-10, Approve Marine Services 2026 Insurance Renewal
	RESOLUTION NO. 26-10

	6.a 1 Resolution No. 26-11, Approve KT 25-988 CO 4 MV Solano Repairs Summary
	6.a 2 Resolution No. 26-11,  Approve KT 25-998 CO 4 MV Solano Repairs
	RESOLUTION NO. 26-11

	6.b 1 Resolution No. 26-12, Award KT 25-014 Reliance Engine Swings and Repairs Summary
	6.b 2 Resolution No. 26-12, Award KT 25-014 Reliance Engine Swings and Repairs
	RESOLUTION NO. 26-12

	6.c 1 Resolution No. 26-13, Award Contract Federal Legislative Liaison Summary
	6.c 2 Resolution No. 26-13, Award Contract Federal Legislative Liaison
	RESOLUTION NO. 26-13

	6.c 3 Resolution No. 26-13, Award Contract Federal Legislative Liaison Exhibit A
	MEMORANDUM

	8.c February 2026 Report from KT Lobbyist
	8.d 1 Bus Income Statement December 2025
	8.d 2 Ferry Income Statement December 2025
	8.d 3 Balance Sheet December 2025
	8.e CWIP December 2025
	8.f   Fuel Costs Report through January 2026
	Sheet1

	ADP9466.tmp
	MEETING AGENDA
	Date: February 3, 2026
	Time: 10:30 AM – 12:00 PM
	Agendas and Board Packets are available online at www.kitsaptransit.com and available in large-print format upon request.  If you will need accessibility accommodations for this public meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (360) 478-6230 o...

	ADPA02.tmp
	MEETING AGENDA
	Date: February 3, 2026
	Time: 10:30 AM – 12:00 PM
	Agendas and Board Packets are available online at www.kitsaptransit.com and available in large-print format upon request.  If you will need accessibility accommodations for this public meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (360) 478-6230 o...




